 Introduction
Crossroads and Connections: Collections of the National Library of Israel
This celebration of cultural treasures spanning nearly 1,000 years aims to inspire personal reflection on Israel and its history during the State of Israel’s 75th anniversary year. The selected items speak to the diversity of connections to the region and represent the land of Israel as a crossroads and center for exploration and connectivity. This land—a destination, a homeland, an inspiration—has  given rise to art, music, poetry, and writings that bind the stories of great civilizations past and present. The images featured in this exhibition reflect a variety of traditions, languages, and motifs, and offer a glimpse of the cultural and religious creativity and multiplicity of human stories that have traversed the land and State of Israel.
The exhibit is an opportunity to share curated treasures from the National Library of Israel’s (NLI) four main collections: Israel, Judaica, Islam and the Middle East, and the Humanities. Home to the intellectual and cultural treasures of Israel and the Jewish people worldwide, and with the mandate of preserving the history of our people, the NLI has recently embarked on a visionary journey of renewal. In addition to the construction of a new state-of-the-art campus in the heart of Jerusalem, the renewal process incorporates a wide range of initiatives to preserve and make the Library’s resources available to audiences across the globe. Film festivals, concerts, educational programs, conferences, lectures, fellowships, visitor experiences, and special exhibitions will bring NLI’s collections to life in new ways. 
The images in this exhibition were selected from 101 Treasures from the National Library of Israel, a new book published by NLI in honor of the opening of the new Library building in 2023.
Poster #2

In Maimonides’ Own Hand
Maimonides’ Commentary on the Mishnah, circa 1160, Egypt
Drafted in Morocco, completed in Egypt, sold in Syria, brought to England, auctioned in Switzerland, and purchased by Israel—this is the 800-year odyssey of Maimonides’ (1138–1204) masterwork, Commentary on the Mishnah, written in the sage’s own hand. This autograph copy allows us to follow Maimonides’ revisions throughout his life; his son, Rabbi Avraham, and grandson added further marginal notes based on Maimonides’ oral teachings.
The first of three monumental works by Maimonides, the Commentary laid the legal and philosophical groundwork for the later Mishneh Torah (Code of Jewish Law) and Dalalat al-Ha’irin (Guide of the Perplexed). The Commentary’s three lengthy introductions, in which Maimonides explains the nature of Jewish law, ethics, and theology, are among the most important works of Jewish philosophy of all time. The six orders of the Mishnah of this Commentary were dispersed throughout the world over the centuries. When two sections went to auction in 1975, the Israeli Minister of Education, the mayor of Jerusalem, and other important Israeli figures who realized their cultural importance called on philanthropists and the general public to contribute funds for their purchase. The successful acquisition of the manuscripts with collective funds made these documents the symbolic heritage of the entire Jewish people.
Autograph manuscript of Maimonides, Commentary on the Mishnah, Order of Women (Nashim), Egypt, c. 1160s. Ms. Heb. 4° 5703, folio 31r.
Photography by Ardon Bar-Hama
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Mahzor of Generations
The Worms Mahzor, Germany, 1272-1280 
When the Jewish community of Wurzburg was destroyed by a mob massacre in 1298, Jewish refugees fled with two enormous handwritten parchment mahzorim (holiday prayer books). They contained not only the texts of the prayers but also boldly colored illuminations and dramatic images. The first mahzor volume contains the earliest known example of written Yiddish. In one of the handwritten Yiddish notes inside the mahzor, the scribe offers a simple blessing, “Gut taq im betage se vaer dis mahsor in beith hakenses trage” (Let a good day shine for he who carries this mahzor to the synagogue.)
Some of the Wurzburg refugees settled in the city of Worms, and the eponymous “Worms Mahzor” became a symbol of the community’s identity and a source for its liturgy for hundreds of years. After centuries of continual use, the mahzorim were almost stolen during Kristallnacht in November 1938. The city archivist, Dr. Friedrich Illert, at great risk to his own life, smuggled the books out of the Gestapo offices and hid them in the local cathedral, where they remained safe until after the war. In 1957, the city agreed to return them to the Jewish people and have them preserved at the National Library of Israel. 
The Worms Mahzor, Volume 2, 1280, folio 119v. Transferred to the National Library of Israel by the German government in 1957. Ms. Heb. 4° 781.
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Color Coding the Bible
Solomon Mandelkern’s Bible, Leipzig, late 19th century
Solomon Mandelkern (1846–1902), rabbi, poet, and Hebraist, dedicated his life to his magnum opus, a rigorous new concordance of the Bible in Hebrew and Aramaic, which he named Heikhal HaKodesh (the Sacred Structure). From the outside, this volume does not appear extraordinary; but seen from the inside, one can appreciate the years of toil Mandelkern invested in his research and his methodical and innovative approach.
A concordance is an alphabetical listing of all the words in the Bible with citations, and one of the most important tools in critical Bible study. Mandelkern color coded all the words in his Bible to guide the development of modern Hebrew: root words in blue, prepositions in yellow, personal pronouns in green, and proper nouns in red. Zionist leader Nahum Sokolow recalled of Mandelkern, “All his acquaintances will remember the sight of the Bible that he would show to everyone—his inked, mottled, banded Bible with different colors under each word… Someone ought to donate that Bible to some Jewish museum or to the National Library in Jerusalem.” Along with his nineteen volumes of the original manuscript of the concordance, the National Library of Israel is now home to “Mandelkern’s Bible.”
Hebrew Bible, printed by Meir (Max) Halevi Letteris, Berlin, 1879, with subsequent glosses by Mandelkern. V 204.
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The Wandering Poem
Muhammad al-Busiri, Ode of the Mantle, possibly Jerusalem, 1362
The Ode of the Mantle (Qasidat al-burda), a fourteenth-century mystical poem, is one of the most beloved and ubiquitous Muslim poems in praise of the Prophet Muhammad. This beautifully illuminated manuscript was copied in 1362 by the Iranian scholar, linguist, and world traveler, Muhammad Firuzabadi (1329–1414), during a trip to Damascus and, possibly, Jerusalem.  While the manuscript’s fate in the intervening centuries is unknown, a Persian note from 1911 tells of its eventual return to Firuzabadi’s homeland of Iran before ultimately ending up in Jerusalem, when scholar and collector Abraham Shalom Yahuda bequeathed it to the National Library of Israel.
Firuzabadi was educated in Shiraz, traveled to Baghdad, and from the age of twenty, lived in Damascus, Jerusalem, Mecca, and Delhi, before finally settling in Yemen. Throughout his itinerant life, Firuzabadi composed numerous works, including his famous  Arabic dictionary and a commentary on The Ode of the Mantle. His scholarship and book-dealing did not pause during his wanderings; he took every opportunity to read and copy manuscripts during the stops on his journeys. Firuzabadi was by no means exceptional for his time. Movement and knowledge were inseparably linked in the medieval Islamic world, with scholars traveling long distances to study with leading masters, and books circulating far and wide.
Muhammad al-Busiri, Ode of the Mantle, 1362, folio 14r. The Abraham Shalom Yahuda Collection. Ms. Yah. Ar. 784.
Photography by Ardon Bar-Hama
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Mecca of the Mind
Muhammad al-Jazuli, Signs of Benevolent Deeds, Ottoman Empire, 1734 
One of the most popular manuscripts in the pre-modern Muslim world, Signs of Benevolent Deeds (Dala’il al-khayrat), is a collection of prayers and meditations on the Prophet Muhammad. It was written by Muhammad al-Jazuli (1404–1465), a revered mystic of medieval Morocco, who developed a Muslim Sufi order centered on intensive spiritual love and devotion to the Prophet Muhammad. Thousands of handwritten copies of this prayer book were copied in North Africa, the Ottoman Empire, and Central and South Asia. 
The immense popularity of this book is often ascribed to the two iconic illustrations of the holy cities of Mecca and Medina found in most copies. And, in this case, sacred art has a political backdrop. Following their sixteenth-century conquest of the Arabian Peninsula, the Ottoman sultans cultivated their reputation as guardians of the hajj pilgrimage sites by disseminating visual imagery of them throughout their empire. The illustrations of Mecca and Medina were a powerful representation of the first pillar of Islam: the Ka‘ba at Mecca (right) as the symbol of God on earth, and the mosque in Medina (left) as the symbol of the beloved Prophet Muhammed. The images highlight the cross-fertilization of North African Sufi prayers with Ottoman iconography.
Muhammad al-Jazuli, Signs of Benevolent Deeds, folios 19v–20r. Ottoman copy from 1734. The Abraham Shalom Yahuda Collection. Ms. Yah. Ar. 864. 
Photography by Ardon Bar-Hama
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A Cartographic Renaissance
Johann Reger, Asia Quarta Map, Germany, 1486 
This distinctive map of Asia Quarta (Quarta Asie tabula) depicts the area between Armenia in the north, Arabia in the south, Cyprus in the west, and Persia in the east. The map is unique in its containing several hand-painted additions portraying important biblical scenes: the collapsing tower of Babylon, Moses receiving the Ten Commandments on Mount Sinai, Samson bringing down the pillars of the temple of Dagon, and the burning of Sodom and Gomorrah by the Dead Sea. It comes from the 1486 Latin edition of Geography, first translated to Latin from Ptolemy’s original Greek by Manuel Chrysoloras in 1397.
In his large treatise, Ptolemy, a famed geographer in second-century Alexandria, explained mathematical map projection methods and included detailed lists of place names and their locations, most likely accompanied by maps. The exceptional additions in this 1486 edition represent the inclinations of the painter, who dressed the classical Greek map in the Christian garb of the Holy Land, in a style typical of the fifteenth century, when the scientific approach often gave way to tradition. It would take much longer for the old traditions to be replaced by the scientific geographical methods that culminated in modern projections and measured maps.
Johann Reger, Asia Quarta Map, Ulm, Germany, 1486. The Eran Laor Cartographic Collection. Laor 604.
Photography by Ardon Bar-Hama
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Across the Wilderness
Orit, the Sacred Scripture of Ethiopian Jews, Ethiopia, 18th century 
This copy of the Orit – sacred scriptures of the Beta Israel of Ethiopia – was handed down from generation to generation over more than three hundred years. Kes Isaac Yaso (“Yitzhak the Teacher”) received this Orit from his father. In the early 1980s, the Kes and his family left Ethiopia and embarked on a long and arduous journey to Israel, via Sudan, carrying the treasured Orit. The family donated the Orit and its colorful covering to the National Library of Israel in 2016, and periodically return to the Library to recite from the sacred text. 
Written on parchment in Ge’ez, a Semitic language sacred to both Christians and the Beta Israel, the Orit includes the Torah and the Books of Joshua, Judges, and Ruth. The Orit was usually kept in the home of the Kes, the community’s priest, who would read from the manuscript before the entire community on holidays, such as Rosh Hashanah and Sigd – a distinct holiday of the Beta Israel community celebrated fifty days after Yom Kippur, which marks the renewal of the covenant between God and the Jewish people, the Jewish people’s commitment to Torah, and their yearning for the Temple in Jerusalem. 
Orit, folio 36r. Donated by Kes Isaac Yaso and his family in 2016, Ms. Or. 87.
Photography by Ardon Bar-Hama
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Shakespeare at Jaffa Gate
Trilingual Poster, Jerusalem, 1919 
In November 1919, residents of Jerusalem were offered a theatrical bonanza. The Egyptian theater company of Abd al-Aziz al-Jahili had just arrived in the city. During their five-night run, the company performed Romeo and Juliet, Hamlet, and Othello, as well as Charlotte, a play based on the life of the French assassin, Charlotte Corday, and Hamdan al-Andalusi. This poster announcing the performances was written in Arabic, English, and Hebrew in order to attract the widest possible audience. 
The choice of venue reflected similar aspirations. Qahwat al-Ma‘aref, a cafe located in the city’s commercial hub right outside Jaffa Gate, was Jerusalem’s main public performance space. Constructed only a few years earlier, this new town center symbolized the modern, non-sectarian, and middle-class aspirations of late Ottoman Jerusalem. Despite the fact that the troupe’s repertoire was performed in colloquial Egyptian Arabic, the poster reflects the designer’s familiarity with the new Hebrew culture of the Land of Israel. Ram ve Yael, as the story of Shakespeare’s star-crossed lovers is translated, evokes the biblical names used in an important 1878 Hebrew version. This subtle allusion is all the more striking as the designer muddled the name of the English original, printing “Romes and Juliette” instead of “Romeo and Juliet.”
Trilingual theater poster, Jerusalem, 1919. V 2697 09.
Photography by Ardon Bar-Hama
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Evolution of Art for Children
The Book of Things, Germany and Palestine, 1922 
The Book of Things was written by Haim Bialik, one of the pioneers of modern Hebrew poetry, and was his first book of poems for children. It was also the first title published by Ophir publishing house in 1922, with sixteen of Tom Seidmann-Freud’s illustrations, each facing a short poem describing the image in Hebrew rhyme. Bialik’s poetic genius was matched by Seidmann-Freud’s talents as an illustrator. Her work for children is considered one of the pinnacles of twentieth-century German art, and The Book of Things rivaled the finest European children’s literature of its day. The Book of Things, along with additional Ophir publications, attests to a magnificent pioneering experiment in the history of Hebrew picture books.
In 1921, Bialik (1873–1934) fled Odessa, the center of Hebrew culture in Russia. Resettling in Berlin, he met the illustrator Tom Seidmann-Freud (the niece of Sigmund Freud) and her husband, Jacob Seidmann, who had founded a German publishing house for children’s books. In light of the spectacular illustrations and high quality of printing, Bialik partnered with them to establish Ophir, a Hebrew publishing house for children’s books, based on the revolutionary principle that, in Bialik’s words, “the illustrations are primary, and the text is secondary.” About two years after publication of The Book of Things, Bialik immigrated to the Land of Israel and continued his work there.
“Carousel” (Seharhoret), from The Book of Things (Sefer ha-devarim) by Haim Nahman Bialik, illustrations by Tom Seidmann-Freud. Ophir Publishers, Berlin and Jerusalem, 1922. 8° 31 V 1211. 
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Prayer and Persecution 
Manuscript Siddur in Cyrillic Characters, Uzbekistan, 1986 
In the 1980s, Jewish activists in the Soviet Union began to conduct underground Hebrew classes and even acquired a limited quantity of prayer books. But several generations had never been taught the Hebrew language, and when younger people felt a need to pray, they could not read the traditional liturgy. One solution was for a more knowledgeable community member to borrow one of the few prayer books, copy it by hand, and add Cyrillic transliteration (the alphabet used by many Slavic people) and vernacular translation. Such is the background of this 1986 manuscript prayer book from Tashkent, Uzbekistan, with a Bukharan translation—written just a few years before the Soviet Union was dissolved and Jewish communal organizations were allowed to reopen. 
The deeply traditional Bukharan Jewish community, steeped in Jewish practice and the local dialect of Judeo-Persian, faced a deep crisis with the rise of Communism in the region in 1920. While these Jews held a profound commitment to tradition, observance, and Scripture, the Soviet regime persecuted religion in general and Judaism in particular. It was primarily older community members, who had grown up without Soviet control, who held on to knowledge of Hebrew and Judaism, and, under these circumstances, continued to preserve the ancient and medieval tradition of the Jewish manuscript late into the modern period.
Prayer book in Cyrillic, Volume 2, non-numbered title page, Ms. Heb. 28° 7357.

The item may be protected by copyright. Use of the items is in accordance with Section 27A of the Israeli Copyright Law, 5768-2007, “Works for which the copyright owner is unknown or has not been located” (an “Orphan Work”). The National Library of Israel conducted a diligent search for the purpose of locating the copyright owner(s) as stipulated in Section 27A(a)(1) of the Copyright Law, but did not succeed in locating the copyright owner(s). If you are the owner or have additional information regarding ownership of copyright of the item, please contact us to assist in locating the copyright owners.
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Praying in Her Language
Women's Siddur (Seder Nashim), Greece, circa 1550
This siddur for women, Seder Nashim, is the first printed translation of prayers into Ladino, and one of the oldest printed works in this language. It appeared in Salonica (Thessaloniki) as early as 1565, and its opening page contains what is likely the first printed appearance of the word, “Ladino.” The siddur includes prayers and instructions for prayer for the whole year, brief summaries of the laws traditionally associated with women, and a translation of the Passover Haggadah.
Ladino, also called Judeo-Spanish or Judesmo, was a vernacular language that originated in Spain and developed primarily in the Balkans, Greece, and Turkey among descendants of Jews expelled from Spain in 1492. Translating an entire siddur into the vernacular was revolutionary in the sixteenth century, reflecting the popularization of printed books and the assumption of a female audience who were less comfortable with Hebrew. Although it is difficult to reach firm conclusions regarding the actual knowledge or practice of Jewish women based on this prayer book, Seder Nashim nonetheless exemplifies a sociocultural context in which it was expected, or at least hoped, that women would pray regularly and fulfill specific Jewish traditions.
Seder Nashim, opening page, Salonica, Greece, c. 1550. 0° 99 A 681.
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The Day the Newspapers Stood as One
State Day (Yom ha-medinah), Israel, 1948 
Immediately following the ceremony declaring the new State of Israel on Friday, May 14, 1948, this one-off newspaper was published in honor of the event. Entitled State Day, it was initiated and produced collaboratively by all the major Hebrew daily papers, in a rare display of national unity. This headline, “The Nation Proclaims the State of Israel,” appears next to a portrait of Zionist visionary, Theodor Herzl, followed by the text of the Declaration of Independence and the first pronouncements of the provisional government.
Political reality was highly polarized at the time, and most of the major newspapers were partisan platforms for the left or right, Marxist or religious parties, liberals or socialists. The declaration of the State united them all, but it is doubtful this would have happened had the groundwork not been laid in advance. Five weeks before the establishment of the State of Israel, in besieged Jerusalem, the major newspapers were compelled to band together to publish a joint paper that they called Yediot Yerushalayim (Jerusalem News). This cooperation sowed the seeds for the collaborative and celebratory publication of State Day.
"State Day" newspaper, Tel Aviv, May 14, 1948. L 1498.
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Beyond Heroism
Hannah Szenes' Last Note, Hungary, 1944
Hannah Szenes, “Eli, Eli,” Palestine, 1942-1943
“My dear, beloved mother,” wrote Hannah Szenes on November 7, 1944, from her jail cell in Budapest. “I have no words. All I can say to you is a million thanks. Forgive me if you can. You alone will understand why there is no need for words. With endless love, your daughter.” These words were scribbled hastily, shortly before Hannah was executed by a Hungarian firing squad, and offer a moving testament to the love between mother and daughter, as well as to Hannah’s indomitable strength of spirit. 
Hannah was one of 37 Jewish recruits from the Yishuv in Palestine parachuted by the British into Yugoslavia to assist anti-Nazi forces. Caught after crossing into her native Hungary, imprisoned and tortured, Hannah refused to reveal details of her mission. On November 7, she was tried and executed. A few days later, Katrina Szenes received her daughter’s belongings and found the note Hannah had tucked into the pocket of her dress. Katrina immigrated to Israel the next year and preserved the note, together with Hannah’s belongings and writings she had left in Kibbutz Sdot Yam before departing on her mission. Among the items from Hannah's kibbutz days are the excerpts from her diary displayed here, with drafts of two poems, including “A Walk to Caesarea" (Halikhah le-Kesariyah), also known as "Eli, Eli," one of Hannah's best-known works. The entire archive was transferred to the National Library of Israel in 2020.
Hannah Szenes’ last note, Hungary, 1944. Hannah Szenes' diary pages 54-55, Palestine, November 1942–February 1943. The Szenes Family Archive, with thanks to Ori and Mirit Eisen. ARC. 4° 2091 04 03 01 and ARC. 4° 2091 04 02 04.
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Poster #15
Illustrating Flora of the Land
The Naomi Finebrun-Dothan Archive, Israel, 20th century
In 1960, Naomi Feinbrun-Dothan and Ruth Koppel published Wild Plants in the Land of Israel (Tsimhe bar be-erets Yisrael), a color publication that included among its many descriptions and illustrations the Jerusalem pine, the poppy, the oleander, and the Egyptian clove. Koppel’s handwritten notes on the galleys of this volume shed light on her artistic process and commitment to depicting the specimen reliably. The partners’ work culminated in the publication of The Flora of Palestine, a monumental research project documenting all local flora and the environs.
The National Library of Israel is home to the archive of these remarkable women, which includes sketches, illustrations, and a three-decades-long correspondence testifying to a symbiotic relationship between scientist and artist. The archival materials offer a unique angle on the story of the national, scientific, and linguistic enterprise to identify local vegetation and develop Hebrew terminology. They also provide us with the rare personal testimony of two women, both immigrants and pioneers, making their way through the academic thicket in the early years of the State. During her life, Feinbrun-Dothan’s studies were published in academic journals and books for the general public, addressed “to the residents of the land, to tourists…to readers in the diaspora eager to get to know the country and its flora.”
Illustrations and notes by Ruth Koppel prepared for the publication of Wild Plants in the Land of Israel (Tsimhe bar be-erets Yisrael), Tel Aviv, 1960. The Naomi Feinbrun-Dothan Archive, donated by Uriel Safriel. ARC. 4° 2071.
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The City of Gold
Naomi Shemer, Jerusalem of Gold Draft Lyrics, Israel, 1967
When the Six-Day War broke out in June 1967, Naomi Shemer went to the Sinai to perform for Israeli troops. On the way, she heard on the radio that the Israeli army had taken the Old City of Jerusalem, soldiers were standing by the Wailing Wall, and a shofar was being blown. To celebrate the reunification of Jerusalem, Shemer took out her diary and penned this fourth verse to her just-released hit song, (Jerusalem of Gold) Yerushalayim Shel Zahav:  “We have returned to the cisterns, to the market and the marketplace; a shofar calls out on the Temple Mount in the Old City.”
Earlier that year, by request of Jerusalem Mayor Teddy Kollek, the organizers of Israel’s annual Independence Day song contest had commissioned five songwriters to compose songs about Jerusalem, amongst them Naomi Shemer (1930–2004). Searching for a theme, Shemer recalled a Talmudic legend about Rabbi Akiva who promised his wife, Rachel, “a city of gold,” a piece of jewelry in the shape of Jerusalem. Redirecting this idea, Shemer wrote three verses and a refrain, describing the Jewish people's 2,000-year longing to return to Jerusalem. Performed by the singer and guitarist Shuli Natan, then a twenty-year-old soldier, Yerushalayim Shel Zahav achieved immediate and enthusiastic hit status in Israel. Together with the final stanza shown here, the song evolved into a global anthem to Jerusalem.
Early version of music of Jerusalem of Gold (Yerushalayim Shel Zahav), manuscript. Mus. 0250 A 016 (1). Draft of fourth verse of the song lyrics found in the personal diary of the author, 1967. Donated by the Shemer-Horowitz family. Mus. 0250 E 083. 
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In a Forest Grove
The Natan Sharansky Archive, Soviet Union, 20th century 
In the Soviet Union of the 1970s, it was forbidden to observe Judaism, study Hebrew, or celebrate Jewish culture, and so Jewish activists looked for other places to gather, far from the eyes of the authorities. One of these places was the Ovrazhki birch grove, thirty kilometers from Moscow, which became an unofficial symbol of the 1970s Jewish revival in the Soviet Union. Here, during the warmer months, Jewish activists gathered to picnic, hold photo exhibitions and music festivals, learn Hebrew, and mark the Jewish holidays. 
Amongst the activists was a young Natan Sharansky (b. 1948), perhaps the most renowned of all refuseniks, who spent nine years in Soviet prisons during the 1970s and 1980s. In 2018, Sharansky donated his personal archive to the National Library of Israel. The archive contains photographs, personal belongings, documentation of the struggle of the Prisoners of Zion, and materials covering the sequence of events leading to Sharansky’s release from prison. These photographs of Jewish activists in the Ovrazhki grove reflect a necessarily creative approach to Jewish life that helped unite the individuals involved in a close-knit and supportive community under the most difficult circumstances.
Natan Sharansky and Other Jewish Activists, Soviet Union, 1970s. The Natan Sharansky Archive.
Photos by Alexander Luntz, 1970s. ARC. 4° 2030. 
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Kafka’s Life and Legacy
Franz Kafka’s Hebrew Studies and Drawings, Czechoslovakia and Germany, 20th century 
Franz Kafka (1883–1924) was born to an assimilated Jewish family in Prague. In 1921-22, before his early death from tuberculosis, Kafka wrote two notes to his dear friend, Max Brod, asking that all his manuscripts, paintings, and letters be destroyed after his death. In defiance of this clear directive, Brod collected Kafka’s works, examined them, and began to publish them. Brod took all of Kafka’s writings with him when he fled his native Czechoslovakia for Palestine in March 1939. 

In the early 1960s, Brod returned a large number of the writings to Kafka’s surviving heirs. However, he retained hundreds of letters, several short manuscripts, some Hebrew exercises, and many drawings, which compose a significant part of Kafka’s literary legacy. After editing them, Brod deposited these precious items in a Swiss bank for safekeeping. Following a prolonged legal battle over rightful ownership that ended only in 2019, Brod’s extensive personal archive, which included Kafka’s works, was deposited in the National Library of Israel. These works represent the third largest collection in the world of original materials by Franz Kafka.
Kafka’s Hebrew exercises during his studies, folios 14v–15r, in Franz Kafka, Blue Notebook, Prague, Czechoslovakia, c. 1920. ARC. 4° 2000 5 34.  Kafka's pencil drawing of Johann Wolfgang Goethe’s garden cottage in Weimar, Germany, 1912, folio 12r. Max Brod Archive. ARC. 4° 2000 5 85. 
The Max Brod and Franz Kafka Archive. 
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Family Time in the Dunes

Frédéric Brenner's Photograph of The Aslan Levi Family, Israel, 2010
“The Aslan Levi family are my neighbors in Jerusalem. Avi Aslan Levi’s ancestors came from Ur Kasdim, today in Iraq, to the Holy Land on donkeys at the beginning of the 20th century.  His wife Zehava‘s family came from Morocco. I know they go to the beach as a family, and that is where I took this picture.” These are the words of acclaimed photographer Frédéric Brenner. It was important for Brenner to show a middle-class Mizrahi family, of the type that has been under-represented in Israeli society. Brenner also wanted to photograph one of Israel’s few remaining sand dunes, as so few natural dunes are left due to development on the coast.  

This family portrait is part of a series of photographs from Brenner’s This Place project where he invited 11 photographers from around the world to join him, from 2009-2012, in exploring and revealing an Israel rich in complexities and paradoxes. Frédéric Brenner has spent over 25 years photographing the diasporic journey of Jews in over 40 countries around the globe, both to record vanishing Jewish communities and to document the diversity of individual Jewish identities. He is donating his archive to the National Library of Israel.  

Photography by Frédéric Brenner. From An Archeology of Fear and Desire, 2010. 
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